

LAW OFFICES

WHITTINGTON & AULGUR

COFFEE RUN PROFESSIONAL CENTRE

LANCASTER PIKE & LOVEVILLE ROAD

HOCKESSIN, DELAWARE 19707

(302).239-6100

1-800-441-9459
TELECOPIER 302-239-6322

WILMINGTON OFFICE
1703 MELLON BANK CENTER
POST OFFICE BOX 5550
WILMINGTON, DE 19808

CERTIFICATE

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT a Code of Regulations of
~~FROM~~ Trinity Square North Condominiums
to --
dated February 5, 1988 in the amount of ---
was recorded at _____ m. on the 5th day
of February, A.D., 1988, in the Office of the
Recorder of Deeds in and for New Castle County, Delaware.

[Handwritten signature]

RECORDED
1988 FEB -5 P 4:35
WILLIAM H. [unclear]
RECORDER

Recorder
[Handwritten signature]

PROPERTY ADDRESS:

Trinity Square North Condominiums
Eleventh and Madison Streets
Wilmington, DE

**INDEX TO
CODE OF REGULATIONS OF
TRINITY SQUARE NORTH CONDOMINIUMS
RECORDED IN THE OFFICE OF THE RECORDER OF DEEDS
IN AND FOR NEW CASTLE COUNTY IN
DEED RECORD BOOK 658, PAGE 36**

ARTICLE 1 - PLAN OF UNIT OWNERSHIP

- A. UNIT OWNERSHIP
- B. APPLICABILITY OF CODE OF REGULATIONS
- C. DEFINITIONS
- D. OFFICE

ARTICLE 2 - ASSOCIATION OF OWNERS

- A. COMPOSITION
- B. ANNUAL MEETINGS
- C. PLACE OF MEETINGS
- D. SPECIAL MEETINGS
- E. NOTICE OF MEETINGS
- F. ADJOURNMENT OF MEETINGS
- G. ORDER OF BUSINESS
- H. QUORUM
- I. CONDUCT OF MEETING

ARTICLE 3 - COUNCIL

- A. NUMBER AND QUALIFICATION
- B. POWERS AND DUTIES
- C. MANAGING AGENT
- D. ELECTION PROCEDURE
- E. TERM OF OFFICE
- F. REMOVAL OF MEMBERS OF THE COUNCIL
- G. VACANCIES
- H. ORGANIZATION MEETING
- I. REGULAR MEETINGS
- J. SPECIAL MEETINGS
- K. WAIVER OF NOTICE
- L. QUORUM OF COUNCIL
- M. FIDELITY BONDS
- N. DIRECTOR AND OFFICER LIABILITY INSURANCE
- O. COMPENSATION
- P. CONDUCT OF MEETINGS
- Q. ACTION BY WRITTEN CONSENT
- R. LIABILITY OF THE MEMBERS OF COUNCIL
- S. COUNCIL COMMITTEES

ARTICLE 4 - OFFICERS

- A. DESIGNATION
- B. ELECTION OF OFFICERS
- C. REMOVAL OF OFFICERS
- D. VACANCIES
- E. PRESIDENT
- F. VICE PRESIDENT
- G. SECRETARY
- H. TREASURER
- I. AGREEMENTS, CONTRACTS, DEEDS, CHECKS, ETC.
- J. COMPENSATION OF OFFICERS

ARTICLE 5 - OPERATION OF THE PROPERTY

- A. DETERMINATION OF COMMON EXPENSES AND ASSESSMENTS AGAINST OWNERS
- B. PAYMENT OF COMMON EXPENSES
- C. COLLECTION OF ASSESSMENTS
- D. STATEMENT OF COMMON EXPENSES
- E. ADDITIONS, ALTERATIONS OR IMPROVEMENTS BY OWNERS
- F. RESTRICTIONS ON USE OF UNITS
- G. RULES AND REGULATIONS

ARTICLE 6 - INSURANCE

- A. AUTHORITY TO PURCHASE**
- B. LIMITATIONS**
- C. SEPARATE INSURANCE**
- D. INSURANCE TRUSTEE**
- E. COUNCIL AS AGENT**
- F. PREMIUMS**
- G. RECONSTRUCTION FUNDS**

ARTICLE 7 - RESTRICTIONS ON SALES, LEASE OR ALIENATION OF UNIT

- A. RIGHT OF FIRST REFUSAL**
- B. NO SEVERANCE OF OWNERSHIP**
- C. PAYMENT OF ASSESSMENTS**

ARTICLE 8 - MORTGAGES

- A. NOTICE TO COUNCIL**
- B. NOTICE OF DEFAULT, CASUALTY OR CONDEMNATION**
- C. NOTICE OF AMENDMENT OF DECLARATION OR REGULATIONS**
- D. NOTICE OF CHANGE IN MANAGING AGENT**
- E. MORTGAGEE'S APPROVALS**
- F. OTHER RIGHTS OF MORTGAGEES**
- G. NOTICE**

ARTICLE 9 - COMPLIANCE AND DEFAULT

- A. RELIEF**
- B. LIEN FOR CONTRIBUTIONS**

ARTICLE 10 - MISCELLANEOUS

- A. NOTICES**
- B. CAPTIONS**
- C. GENDER**
- D. EFFECTIVE DATE**
- E. INTERPRETATION**
- F. APPROVAL OF MORTGAGEES**

**CODE OF REGULATIONS OF
TRINITY SQUARE NORTH CONDOMINIUMS**

THIS CODE OF REGULATIONS made, established and adopted this 5th day of February, A.D., 1988, by FRANK A. ROBINO, JR., PAUL A. ROBINO and A. NORMAN PAUL, the first members of the Council of TRINITY SQUARE NORTH CONDOMINIUMS, pursuant to the provisions of the Delaware Unit Property Act, Chapter 22 of Title 25 of the Delaware Code, revised 1974, as amended and pursuant to the provisions of the Enabling Declaration Establishing a Plan for Condominium Ownership for TRINITY SQUARE NORTH CONDOMINIUMS (the "Declaration") made by FRANK ROBINO ASSOCIATES, INC., a Delaware corporation (the "Declarant").

ARTICLE 1: PLAN OF UNIT OWNERSHIP.

A. UNIT OWNERSHIP. This Code of Regulations governs the operation, management and administration of certain property situate and located in the City of Wilmington, County of New Castle, State of Delaware, known as TRINITY SQUARE NORTH CONDOMINIUMS (hereinafter referred to as the "Property"), which has been submitted to the provisions of Title 25, Chapter 22 of the Delaware Code of 1953, known as the Unit Property Act, by a Declaration recorded in the Office of the Recorder of Deeds in and for New Castle County, Delaware, in Deed Book 658, Page 5 (hereinafter referred to as the "Declaration") and as shown on the Declaration Plan prepared by Karlins and Associates, Inc., recorded in the Office of the Recorder of Deeds in and for New Castle County, Delaware, at Microfilm No. 9031. All of the terms, conditions and provisions of the Declaration are hereby incorporated herein by reference with the same effect as if they were expressly contained herein. Each deed or lease shall contain the following paragraph:

"The acceptance of a deed or transfer document or the entering into of a lease or the act of occupancy of a Unit shall conclusively establish the acceptance and ratification of this Code of Regulations, the Rules and Regulations and the provisions of the Declaration, as they may be amended from time to time, by the person so acquiring, leasing or occupying a Unit and shall constitute and evidence an agreement by such person to comply with the same."

B. APPLICABILITY OF CODE OF REGULATIONS. The provisions of this Code of Regulations are applicable to the Property and to the use and occupancy thereof. All present and future owners, mortgagees, lessees and occupants of Units and their employees, and any other person who may use the facilities of the Property in any manner, are subject to this Code of Regulations, the Declaration and the Rules and Regulations. The acceptance of a deed or transfer document or the entering into of a lease or the act of occupancy of a Unit shall conclusively establish the acceptance and ratification of this Code of Regulations, the Rules and Regulations and the provisions of the Declaration, as they may be amended from time to time, by the person so acquiring, leasing or occupying a Unit and shall constitute and evidence an agreement by such person to comply with the same.

C. DEFINITIONS. The following words and terms as used herein shall have the meanings respectively ascribed thereto in the Declaration: Building, Code of Regulations, Common Elements, Common Expenses, Common Surplus, Condominium Documents, Council, Declaration Plan, Majority of Unit Owners, Property, Proportionate Interest, Rules and Regulations, Unit, Unit Owner, and Unit Property Act.

D. OFFICE. The Office of the TRINITY SQUARE NORTH CONDOMINIUMS and of the Council may be located at the Property or at such other place as may be designated from time to time by the Council.

ARTICLE 2: ASSOCIATION OF OWNERS.

A. COMPOSITION. All of the Unit Owners, acting as a group in accordance with the Unit Property Act, the Declaration and this Code of Regulations, shall constitute the "Association of Owners", who shall have the responsibility of administering the Property, establishing the means and methods of collecting the contributions to the Common Expenses, arranging for the management of the Property, and performing all of the other acts that may be required to be performed by the Association of Owners, in accordance with the Unit Property Act and the Declaration. Except as to those matters which the Unit Property Act specifically requires to be performed by the vote of the Unit Owners, the administration of the foregoing responsibilities shall be performed exclusively by the Council on behalf of the Unit Owners as more particularly set forth in Article 3.

B. ANNUAL MEETINGS.

(1) Promptly after the earlier of (a) December 31, 1989, or (b) until the Declarant shall have sold twenty-one (21) Units, the Declarant shall notify the owners of such Units, and the first annual meeting of the Association of Owners shall be held within thirty (30) days thereafter on a call issued by the President of the Council.

(2) At such meeting the persons designated by the Declarant shall resign as members of the Council, and all of the Unit Owners, including the Declarant if the Declarant owns any Unit or Units, shall elect a new Council which shall consist of five (5) members.

(3) Thereafter, the annual meeting of the Association of Owners shall be held on the third Monday in January of each succeeding year.

(4) At such annual meeting, the Council shall be elected by ballot of the Unit Owners in accordance with the requirements of Section D of Article 3 of this Code of Regulations.

(5) The Association of Owners may transact such other business at such meetings as may properly come before them.

C. PLACE OF MEETINGS. Meetings of the Association of Owners shall be held at the Property or at such other suitable place convenient to the Unit Owners as maybe designated by the Council.

D. SPECIAL MEETINGS.

(1) It shall be the duty of the President of the Council to call a special meeting of the Association of Owners if so directed by resolution of the Council or upon a petition signed and presented to the Secretary of the Council by Unit Owners owning not less than twenty-five (25%) percent of the Proportionate Interest of all Unit Owners; provided, however, that no special meeting shall be called prior to the first annual meeting of the Association of Owners except by resolution of the Council.

(2) The notice of any special meeting shall state the time and place of such meeting and the purpose thereof.

(3) No business shall be transacted at a special meeting except as stated in the notice. Within thirty (30) days after the earlier of (a) December 31, 1989 or (b) until the Declarants shall have sold twenty-one (21) Units, a special meeting of the Association of Owners shall be held at which meeting all of the members of Council elected by Declarant shall resign, and the Owners, including the Declarant if the Declarant owns any Unit or Units, shall there upon elect successor members of the Council to act in the place and stead of those resigning.

E. NOTICE OF MEETINGS. It shall be the duty of the Secretary of the Council to mail a notice of each annual or special meeting of the Association of Owners, at least ten (10) but not more than twenty (20) days prior to such meeting, stating the purpose thereof as well as the time and place where it is to be held, to each Unit Owner of record, at such address as each Unit Owner shall have designated by notice in writing to the Secretary of the Council. The mailing of a notice of meeting in the manner provided in this Section shall be considered service of notice.

F. ADJOURNMENT OF MEETINGS. If any meetings of the Association of Owners cannot be held because a quorum is not present, Owners owning a majority of the Proportionate Interest who are present at such meeting, either in person or by proxy, may adjourn the meeting to a time not less than forty-eight (48) hours from the time the original meeting was called.

G. ORDER OF BUSINESS. The order of business at all annual meetings of the Association of Owners shall be as follows:

- (1) Roll call;
- (2) Proof of notice of meeting;
- (3) Reading of minutes of preceding meeting;
- (4) Reports of officers;
- (5) Report of the Council;
- (6) Reports of committees;
- (7) Election of members of the Council (when so required);
- (8) Unfinished business;
- (9) New business.

H. QUORUM. Except as otherwise provided in this Code of Regulations, the presence in person or by proxy of a Majority of the Unit Owners shall constitute a quorum at all meetings of the Association of Owners.

I. CONDUCT OF MEETING. The President of the Council shall preside over all meetings of the Association of Owners and the Secretary of the Council shall keep the minutes of the meeting and record in a minute book all resolutions adopted at the meeting and a record of all transactions occurring at the meeting. Roberts Rules of Order shall govern the conduct of all meetings of the Association of Owners when not in conflict with the Declaration, Rules, this Code of Regulations or the Unit Property Act.

ARTICLE 3: COUNCIL

A. NUMBER AND QUALIFICATION.

(1) The affairs of the property shall be governed by the Council.

(2) Until the earlier of December 31, 1989, or the Declarant shall have sold twenty-one (21) Units, and thereafter until successors shall have been elected by the Unit Owners, the Council shall consist of three (3) persons who may be principals of the Declarant, or such other persons as shall have been designated by the Declarant.

(3) Thereafter, the Council shall be composed of five (5) persons, all of whom shall be Unit Owners or residents of the State of Delaware.

(4) The Declarant shall have the right in its sole discretion to replace such Council members as may be so selected and designated by it, and to select and designate their successors.

B. POWERS AND DUTIES. The Council shall have all of the powers and duties necessary for the administration of the affairs of the Property and may do all such acts and things as are not directed to be exercised and done directly by the Association of Owners by the Unit Property Act, the Declaration or by this Code of Regulations. The Council shall have the power from time to time to adopt any rules and regulations deemed necessary for the enjoyment of the Property provided such Rules and Regulations shall not be in conflict with this Code of Regulations, the Unit Property Act or the Declaration. The Council may delegate to one of its members the authority to act on behalf of the Council on all matters relating to the duties of the Managing Agent, if any, which might arise between meetings of the Council. In addition to the duties imposed by this Code of Regulations or by any resolution

of the Association of Owners that may hereafter be adopted, the Council shall have the power to, and be responsible for, the following:

(1) Preparation of an annual budget, in which there shall be established the contribution of each Owner to the Common Elements.

(2) Levying assessments against Unit Owners to defray the costs and expenses of operating and maintaining the Property, establishing the means and methods of collecting such assessments from the Unit Owners, and establishing the period of time installment payment of the annual assessment for Common Expenses. Unless otherwise determined by the Council, the annual assessment for Common Expenses assessed against each Unit Owner according to his Proportionate Interest shall be payable in equal monthly installments, each such installment to be due and payable in advance on the first day of each month for such month.

(3) Providing for the operation, care, upkeep, and maintenance of all of the Common Elements and services for the Property.

(4) Designating, hiring and dismissing the personnel necessary for the maintenance, operation, repair and replacement of the Common Elements and providing services for the Property and, where appropriate, providing for the compensation of such personnel and for the purchase of equipment, supplies and material to be used by such personnel in the performance of their duties.

(5) Collecting the assessments for Common Expenses against the Unit Owners, depositing the proceeds thereof in a bank depository which the Council shall approve, and using the proceeds to pay the Common Expenses.

(6) Bringing, prosecuting, defending and settling litigation on behalf of the Council, the Property and the Unit Owners, and to pay any adverse judgment entered therein.

(7) Enter into and to perform under contracts, deeds, leases and other written instruments or documents in the name of the Council and to authorize the execution and delivery thereof by an officer of the Council.

(8) Making and amending Rules and Regulations respecting the use of the Property.

(9) Opening bank accounts and designating the signatories required therefor.

(10) Making, or contracting for the making of, repairs, additions, and improvements to, or alterations of, the Property and repairs to and restoration of the Property, in accordance with the other provisions of this Code of Regulations or the Declaration.

(11) Entering into or ratifying management contracts for the operation, maintenance or management of the Property.

(12) Enforcing by legal means the provisions of the Declaration, this Code of Regulations and the Rules and Regulations.

(13) Obtaining and carrying insurance against casualties and liabilities, as provided in Article 6 of this Code of Regulations, and paying the premium cost thereof.

(14) Paying the cost of all services rendered to the Property and not billed to Unit Owners.

(15) Purchasing, holding, selling, conveying, mortgaging or leasing any one (1) or more Units in the name of the Council.

(16) Keeping books with detailed accounts of the receipts and expenditures affecting the Property, and the administration of the Property, specifying the maintenance and repair expenses of the Common Elements and any other expenses incurred. The books and vouchers accrediting the entries thereupon shall be available for examination by the Unit Owners and first mortgagees of Units, or their respective duly authorized agents or attorneys, during general business hours on working days at the times and in the manner that shall be set and announced by the Council. All books and records shall be kept in accordance with good and accepted accounting practices, and the same shall be audited at least once a year by an outside auditor employed by the Council who shall not be a resident of the Condominium or a Unit Owner. The cost of such audit shall be a Common Expense.

(17) Notifying a first mortgagee of any Unit of any default by the Owner of such Unit whenever requested in writing by such mortgagee to send such notice.

(18) To do such other things and acts not inconsistent with this Code of Regulation, the Unit Property Act and with the Declaration which it may be authorized to do by a resolution of the Association of Owners.

C. MANAGING AGENT. The Council may employ a professional managing agent to perform such duties and services as the Council shall authorize, including, but not limited to, the duties of Council listed in Section B of this Article 3.

D. ELECTION PROCEDURE. A member shall be elected to Council by a vote of a majority of the aggregate percentage of the total vote present at a duly constituted annual meeting or special meeting of the Association of Owners called for that purpose. All voting for Council members shall be by written ballot supervised by three inspectors of election appointed by the President of the Council from among the qualified voters present at such meeting.

E. TERM OF OFFICE. Council members shall serve a term of office of one (1) year. The members of the Council shall hold office until their respective successors shall have been elected by the Association of Owners.

F. REMOVAL OF MEMBERS OF THE COUNCIL. At any regular or special meeting of the Association of Owners duly called, anyone or more of the members of the Council may be removed with or without cause by a Majority of the Unit Owners and a successor may then and there be elected to fill the vacancy thus created. Any member of the Council whose removal has been proposed by the Unit Owners shall be given at least ten (10) days' notice of the calling of the meeting and the purpose thereof and shall be given an opportunity to be heard at the meeting. Notwithstanding anything in this Section to the contrary, so long as the Declarant owns a total of twenty-one (21) Units, no person selected and designated by the Declarant as a member of the Council may be removed without the written consent of the Declarant and, in such event, the Declarant shall select and designate his successor.

G. VACANCIES. Vacancies in the Council caused by any reason other than the removal of a member by a vote of the Association of Owners shall be filled by a vote of a majority of the remaining members of the Council at a special meeting of the Council held for that purpose promptly after the occurrence of any such vacancy, even though the members present at such meeting may constitute less than a quorum, and each person so elected shall be a member of the Council for the remainder of the term of the member so vacating and until a successor shall be elected at the next meeting of the Association of Owners; provided, however, that the vacancy of any member designated by the Declarant pursuant to a right of the Declarant to make such designations shall be filled by the Declarant.

H. ORGANIZATION MEETING. The first meeting of the members of the Council following the annual meeting of the Association of Owners shall be held within fifteen (15) days thereafter.

I. REGULAR MEETINGS. Regular meetings of the Council may be held at such time and place as shall be determined from time to time by a majority of the Council members, but at least six (6) such meetings shall be held during each fiscal year. Notice of regular meetings of the Council shall be given to each member, by mail or telegraph, at least three (3) business days prior to the day named for such meeting.

J. SPECIAL MEETINGS. Special meetings of the Council may be called by the President on three (3) business days' notice to each member, given by mail or telegraph, which notice shall state the time, place and purpose of the meeting. Special meetings of the Council shall be called by the President or Secretary in like manner and on like notice on the written request of at least two (2) members.

K. WAIVER OF NOTICE. Any member may, at any time, in writing, waive notice of any meeting of the Council, and such waiver shall be deemed equivalent to the giving of such notice. Attendance by a member at any meeting of the Council shall constitute a waiver of notice by such member of the time and place of such meeting. If all members are present at any meeting of the Council, no notice shall be required and any business may be transacted at such meeting.

L. QUORUM OF COUNCIL. At all meetings of the Council, a majority of the members shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business, and the votes of a majority of the members present at a meeting at which a quorum is present shall constitute the decision of the Council.

M. FIDELITY BONDS. The Council may require fidelity bonds for all officers and employees of the Condominium handling or responsible for condominium funds. The premiums on such bonds shall constitute a Common Expense.

N. DIRECTOR AND OFFICER LIABILITY INSURANCE. The Council may obtain Director and Officer Liability Insurance for all Council members and officers of the Council. The premiums on such insurance shall constitute a Common Expense.

O. COMPENSATION. No member of the Council shall receive any compensation for acting as such.

P. CONDUCT OF MEETINGS. The President shall preside over all meetings of the Council and the Secretary shall keep a minute book of the Council meetings, recording therein all resolutions adopted by the Council and a record of all transactions and proceedings occurring at such meetings. Robert's Rules of Order shall govern the conduct of the meetings of the Council when not in conflict with the Declaration, this Code of Regulations or the Unit Property Act.

Q. ACTION BY WRITTEN CONSENT. So long as the Council is composed entirely of designees of the Declarant, the members of the Council may act by unanimous consent in lieu of a meeting. Thereafter, the Council shall act only at duly constituted meetings thereof.

R. LIABILITY OF THE MEMBERS OF THE COUNCIL. The members of the Council shall not be liable to the Unit Owners for any mistake of judgment, negligence, or otherwise except for their own individual willful misconduct or bad faith. The Unit Owners shall indemnify and hold harmless each of the members of the Council from and against all contractual liability to others arising out of contracts made by the Council on behalf of the unit Owners unless any such contract shall have been made in bad faith or contrary to the provisions of the Declaration or of this Code of Regulations and known to be such by the Council members. It is intended that the members of the Council shall have no personal liability with respect to any contract made by them on behalf of the Unit Owners. It is also intended that the liability of any Unit Owner arising out of any contract made by the Council or out of the aforesaid indemnity in favor of the members of the Council shall be limited to such proportion of the total liability thereunder as such Unit Owner's Proportionate Interest bears to the proportionate interests of all of the Unit Owners. Every agreement made by the Council or by a managing agent on behalf of the Unit Owners shall provide that the members of the Council, or a managing agent, as the case may be, are acting only as agents for the Unit Owners and shall have no personal liability thereunder (except as Unit Owners), and that each Unit Owner's liability thereunder shall be limited to such proportion of the total liability thereunder as such Unit Owner's Proportionate Interest bears to the Proportionate interests of all Unit Owners. The Unit Owners shall indemnify any person who was or is a party or is threatened to be made a party to any threatened, pending or completed action, suit or proceeding by reason of the fact that he is or was a member of the Council, against expenses (including reasonable attorneys'

fees), judgments, fines and amounts paid in settlement incurred by such person in connection with such action, suit or proceeding if such person acted in good faith and in a manner such person reasonably believed to be in, or not opposed to, the best interest of the Unit Owners.

S. COUNCIL COMMITTEES. The Council may, from time to time, establish such one or more ad hoc committees as it may deem necessary or appropriate for the administration of the affairs of the Council or of the Property. Each such committee shall have such discretionary, decision-making or advisory powers as the Council may vest the committee with, provided, however, that the Council shall retain full responsibility for all acts undertaken by any committee within the authority granted to such committee. The members of any such committee shall be appointed from among the members of Council or from those persons entitled to vote at any meeting of Unit Owners, or any combination thereof.

ARTICLE 4: OFFICERS.

A. DESIGNATION. The principal officers of the Council shall be the President, the Vice President, the Secretary, and the Treasurer, all of whom shall be members of the Council. An officer shall be elected by a majority vote of the Council.

B. ELECTION OF OFFICERS. The officers shall be elected annually by the Council at the first meeting of each new Council and shall hold office at the pleasure of the Council. Any vacancy in an office shall be filled by the Council at a regular meeting or a special meeting called for such purpose.

C. REMOVAL OF OFFICERS. Upon the affirmative vote of a majority of the members of the Council, any officer may be removed, either with or without cause, and such officer's successor may be elected at any regular meeting of the Council, or at any special meeting of the Council called for such purpose.

D. VACANCIES. Any vacancy in any office by reason of death, resignation, removal or otherwise, shall be promptly filled by a majority vote of the Council, and the successor officer shall serve the balance of the term so filled.

E. PRESIDENT. The President shall be the chief executive of the Council and shall preside at all meetings of the Association of Owners and of the Council. The President shall have all of the general powers and duties which are incident to the office of the president of a stock corporation organized under the General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware.

F. VICE PRESIDENT. The Vice President shall take the place of the President and perform the President's duties whenever the President shall be absent or unable to act. If neither the President nor the Vice President is able to act, the Council shall appoint some other member of the Council to act in the place of the President, on an interim basis. The Vice President shall also perform such other duties as shall from time to time be imposed upon the Vice President by the Council or by the President.

G. SECRETARY. The Secretary shall keep the minutes of all meetings of the Association of Owners and of the Council and shall have charge of such books and papers as the Council may direct. The Secretary shall, in general, perform all the duties incident to the office of secretary of a stock corporation organized under the General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware.

H. TREASURER. The Treasurer shall have the responsibility for Council funds and securities, for keeping full and accurate financial records and books of account showing all receipts and disbursements, for preparing of all required financial data and for the deposit of all monies and other valuable effects in the name of the Council, or the managing agent, in such depositories as may from time to time be designated by the Council. The Treasurer shall, in general, perform all the duties incident to the office of treasurer of a stock corporation organized under the General Corporation Law of the State of Delaware.

I. AGREEMENTS, CONTRACTS, DEEDS, CHECKS, ETC. All agreements, contracts, deeds, leases, checks and other instruments for expenditures or obligations of One Thousand Dollars (\$1,000.00) or more, with the exception of individual payroll checks, shall be executed by any two (2) officers of the Council or by one (1) officer and one (1) other person as may be designated by the Council. All such instruments for expenditures or obligations of less than One Thousand Dollars (\$1,000.00), as well as all payroll checks, regardless of their amount, may be executed by any two (2) officers or by such other person and one (1) officer as may be designated by the Council.

J. COMPENSATION OF OFFICERS. No officer shall receive any compensation for acting as such.

ARTICLE 5: OPERATION OF THE PROPERTY.

A. DETERMINATION OF COMMON EXPENSES AND ASSESSMENTS AGAINST OWNERS.

(1) FISCAL YEAR. The fiscal year of the Condominium shall consist of the twelve (12) month period commencing on January 1 of each year and terminating on the last day of December of the same calendar year.

(2) PREPARATION AND APPROVAL OF BUDGET. Each year on or before December 1st, the Council shall adopt a budget for the Property containing an estimate of the total amount which the Council considers necessary to pay the cost of maintenance, management, operation, repair and replacement of the Common Elements and those parts of the units as to which the Council has responsibility to maintain, repair and replace, and the cost of wages, materials, insurance premiums, services, supplies and other expenses that may be declared to be Common Expenses by the Unit Property Act, the Declaration, this Code of Regulations or a resolution of the Association of Owners, and which will be required during the ensuing fiscal year for the administration, operation, maintenance and repair of the Property and the rendering to the Unit Owners of all related services. Such budget shall also include such reasonable amounts as the Council considers necessary to provide working capital for the Property, a general operating reserve, and reserves for contingencies and replacements. The Council shall send to each Unit Owner a copy of the budget in a reasonably itemized form, which shall set forth the amount of the Common Expenses to be assessed against each Unit Owner, on or before December 10th preceding the fiscal year to which the budget applies. Such

budget shall constitute the basis for determining each Unit Owner's contribution towards payment of the Common Elements for the fiscal year for which such budget was prepared.

(3) **REGULAR ASSESSMENT AND PAYMENT OF COMMON EXPENSES.** The total amount of the estimated funds required for the operation of the Property set forth in the budget adopted by the Council shall be assessed against each Unit Owner in proportion to such Owner's Proportionate Interest, and shall be a lien against each Unit as of the first day of the fiscal year to which such budget applies. If the Council deems it advisable, the assessment made against each Unit Owner for each fiscal year shall set forth separately such Unit Owner's share of the amount of the total assessment allocated to normal and recurring expenses of administration, management, operation and repair, and the amount of the total assessment allocated to each category of reserves included in the budget. On or before the first day of each fiscal year, and the first day of each of the succeeding eleven (11) months in such fiscal year, each Unit Owner shall be obligated to pay to the Council or the managing agent (as determined by the Council) one-twelfth (1/12th) of the total assessment for such Owner's Unit for such fiscal year computed in accordance with the foregoing provisions; provided, however, if the Council so elects, assessments may be collected quarterly in which event each Unit Owner shall be obligated to pay to the Council or the managing agent (as determined by the Council) one-fourth (1/4th) of the total assessment on the first day of the first, fourth, seventh and tenth months of such fiscal year. Within sixty (60) days after the end of each fiscal year, the Council shall supply to all Unit Owners an itemized accounting of the Common Expenses for such fiscal year actually incurred and paid, together with a tabulation of the amounts collected pursuant to the budget adopted by the Council for such fiscal year, and showing the net amount over or short of the actual expenditures plus reserves. Any amount accumulated in excess of the amount required for actual expenses and reserves shall either be credited according to the Proportionate Interest of each Unit to the next monthly installments due from Unit Owners under the current fiscal year's budget until exhausted, refunded to each Unit Owner, or applied in any other manner as the Council shall determine in its sole discretion. Any net shortage shall, if the Council deems it advisable, be added according to each Unit Owner's Proportionate Interest to the installments due in the succeeding six (6) months after the rendering of the accounting.

(4) **COUNCIL UNIT ASSESSMENT.** In the event the Council purchases a Unit for the use and occupancy of a resident manager for the Property, the cost of such Unit shall be treated as a Common Expense. That portion of the Common Expenses directly attributable to the purchase of the Unit to be used and occupied by the resident manager shall be allocated among the Unit Owners according to their respective Proportionate Interests and collected through a Special Assessment which shall be collectible in whatever manner the Council, in its sole discretion, decides.

(5) **RESERVES.** The Council shall build up and maintain reasonable reserves for working capital, operations, contingencies and replacements. Extraordinary expenditures not originally included in the annual budget which may become necessary during the year shall be charged first against such reserves. If the reserves are inadequate for any reason, including non-payment of any Unit Owner's assessment, the Council may at any time levy a further assessment, which shall be assessed against the Unit Owners according to their respective Proportionate Interests, and which may be payable in a lump sum or in installments as the Council may determine. The Council shall serve notice of any such further assessment on all Unit Owners by a statement in writing giving the amount and reasons therefor, and such further assessment shall, unless otherwise specified in the notice, become effective with the next monthly (or quarterly, if payments are required by the Council to be made quarterly) payment which is due more than ten (10) days after the delivery or mailing of such notice of further assessment. All Unit Owners shall be obligated to pay the adjusted monthly (or quarterly) amounts or, if the additional assessment is not payable in installments, the amount of such assessment.

(5) **EFFECT OF FAILURE TO PREPARE OR ADOPT BUDGET.** The failure or delay of the Council to prepare or adopt the annual budget for any fiscal year shall not constitute a waiver or release in any manner of a Unit Owner's obligation to pay his allowable share of the Common Expenses herein provided, whenever the same shall be determined, and in the absence of any annual budget or adjusted budget, each Unit Owner shall continue to pay the monthly charge at the then existing monthly rate established for the previous fiscal period until the monthly (or quarterly) payment which is due more than ten (10) days after such new annual or adjusted budget shall have been mailed or delivered.

(6) **ACCOUNTING.** Except as otherwise provided, all sums collected by the Council with respect to assessments against the Unit Owners may be commingled into a single fund.

(7) **EXCEPTIONS FOR DECLARANT'S AND COUNCIL'S UNITS.** Notwithstanding any other provision to the contrary, no lawsuit, suspension of utilities or other action shall be taken by or on behalf of the Council or any Unit Owner, occupant, mortgagee or other lienor to collect any assessment made against any Unit owned by Declarant, or the Council, their successors or assigns, which relates to any period of time or times during which the Unit was not actually being occupied as a residence (and the performance of work on Declarant's units to construct, complete, repair, rehabilitate, modify or improve same shall not constitute occupancy thereof) unless and except to the extent that such assessment is for expenditures actually made by the Council for the cost of electricity, gas, oil, water, sewer, insurance protection, trash disposal, or maintenance personnel, in fact directly consumed or utilized by such Unit, independently of and apart from its interest in the Common Elements. Declarant shall be entitled, when any Unit to which Declarant has theretofore held title is for the first time being conveyed, to receive from the Council a credit or reimbursement for all Common Expenses against said Unit during any period of time while it was not being occupied as a residence as above provided, except for such portion of the assessments as has been actually expended by Council for Declarant's use and benefit as above specified; and such reimbursement shall be a Common Expense of the condominium project. To the extent that Declarant owes any assessment on a Unit at the time when that Unit is being conveyed, the amount due shall be reimbursed to the Council without interest, from the net proceeds of sale received by the Declarant, but only insofar as such net proceeds are adequate. Any deficiency shall be allocated to the Declarant's unsold units in proportion to the Proportionate Interest attributed to each such Unit.

B. PAYMENT OF COMMON EXPENSES. All Unit Owners shall be obligated to pay the Common Expenses assessed by the Council pursuant to the provisions of Section A of this Article 5. No Unit Owner shall be liable for the payment of any part of the Common Expenses assessed against his Unit subsequent to a sale, transfer or other conveyance by him of such Unit.

C. COLLECTION OF ASSESSMENTS. The Council shall take prompt action to collect any assessments for Common Expenses due from any Unit Owner which remain unpaid for more than (30) days from the due date for payment thereof.

D. STATEMENT OF COMMON EXPENSES. The Council shall promptly provide to any Unit Owner so requesting the same in writing a written statement of all unpaid assessments for Common Expenses due from such Unit Owner.

E. ADDITIONS, ALTERATIONS OR IMPROVEMENTS BY OWNERS. No Unit Owner shall make any structural addition, structural alteration or structural improvement in or to such Owner's Unit or to Common Elements without the prior written consent of the Council. Such Council consent shall not be required for Units owned by the Declarant until such Units shall have been initially sold by the Declarant and paid for, or to Limited Common Elements. Any application to any governmental authority for a permit to make any addition, alteration or improvement in or to any Unit must be executed by the Council, except in the case of Units owned by Declarant or Common Elements prior to resignation of Declarants' Council. Such participation by the Council, however, shall not result in any liability on the part of the Council or any of its members to any contractor, subcontractor or materialman on account of such addition, alteration or improvement, or to any person having any claim for injury to person or damage to property arising therefrom.

F. RESTRICTIONS ON USE OF UNITS. Each Unit and the Common Elements shall be occupied and used in accordance with the provisions of the Declaration.

G. RULES AND REGULATIONS. Rules and Regulations concerning the operation and use of the Common Elements may be promulgated and amended from time to time or withdrawn by the Council, provided that such Rules and Regulations are not contrary to or inconsistent with the Unit Property Act, the Declaration or this Code of Regulations. A copy of the current Rules and Regulations shall be made available on request to each Unit Owner by the Council.

ARTICLE 6: INSURANCE

A. AUTHORITY TO PURCHASE. Except as otherwise provided in Section (c) of this Article 6, all insurance policies relating to the Property shall be purchased by the Council as trustee for the Unit Owners and the Owners' respective mortgagees, as their interest may appear, which insurance shall be to the extent available, at least be equal to the following:

(1) Casualty or physical damage insurance in an amount equal to the full replacement value (i.e., one hundred percent (100%) of "replacement cost" less any deductible amount not to exceed One Thousand Dollars (\$1,000.00) per loss per occurrence) with an "agreed amount" endorsement and a "Condominium replacement cost" endorsement, without deduction or allowance for depreciation (such amount to be redetermined annually by the Council with the assistance of the insurance company affording such coverage), such coverage to afford protection against at least the following:

(a) Loss or damage by fire or other hazards covered by the standard extended coverage endorsement.

(b) Such other risks as shall customarily be covered with respect to projects similar in construction, location and use, including, but not limited to, vandalism, malicious mischief, windstorm, water damage, machinery explosion or damage, and such other insurance as the Council may from time to time determine.

(2) Public liability insurance in such amounts and in such form as may be considered appropriate by the Council (but not less than One Million Dollars (\$1,000,000.00) covering all claims for bodily injury or property damage arising out of one occurrence), including, but not limited to, water damage, legal liability, hired automobile, non-owned automobile and any and all other liability incident to the ownership and/or use of the Property or any portion thereof; and

(3) Such other policies of insurance, including insurance for other risks of a similar or dissimilar nature, as are or shall hereafter be considered appropriate by the Council.

B. LIMITATIONS. Any insurance obtained pursuant to the requirements of this Article shall be subject to the following provisions:

(1) All policies shall be written with a company or companies licensed to do business in the State of Delaware and holding a rating of "A+" or better in Best's Insurance Guide.

(2) Exclusive authority to negotiate losses under such policies shall be vested in the Council or its authorized representative, including any trustee with the Council or Association of Owners may enter into any Insurance Trust Agreement, or any successor trustee, each of which shall be herein elsewhere referred to as the "Insurance Trustee".

(3) In no event shall the insurance coverage obtained and maintained pursuant to the requirements of this Article be brought into contribution with insurance purchased by the Unit Owners, individually or collectively, or their respective mortgagees, as herein permitted, and any "no other insurance" or similar clause in any policy obtained by the Council pursuant to the requirements of this Article shall exclude such policies from consideration.

(4) All policies shall provide that they may not be cancelled or substantially modified without at least thirty (30) days' prior written notice to any and all insured named thereon, including the holders of any mortgages on any Unit. Duplicate originals of the insurance policies and all endorsements thereto, together with proof of payment of premiums, shall be delivered to all Unit Owners and to all mortgagees of Units at their written request.

(5) The net proceeds of any claim paid under such policies, if less than Fifty Thousand Dollars (\$50,000.00), shall be payable to the Council, and if more than Fifty Thousand Dollars (\$50,000.00) shall be payable to the Insurance Trustee designated in Section D of this Article.

(6) All policies shall contain, if available, a waiver of subrogation by the insurer as to any and all claims against the Council, any Unit Owner(s) or their respective agents, employees or invitees, and of any defenses based upon coinsurance or invalidity arising from the acts of the insured.

(7) All policies shall contain the standard mortgage clause. In the event a mortgagee endorsement has been issued to a Unit, the proceeds payable shall be held in trust for the named mortgagee and the Unit Owner as their interests may appear.

C. SEPARATE INSURANCE. Each Unit Owner shall have the right, at such Owner's own expense, to obtain insurance coverage upon the Owner's personal property and for the Owner's personal liability, provided that no Unit Owner shall be entitled to exercise such Owner's right to acquire or maintain such additional insurance coverage so as to decrease the amount which the Council, on behalf of all Unit Owners, may realize under any insurance policy which the council may have in force on the Property at any particular time or times cause any insurance coverage maintained by the Council to be brought into contribution with such additional insurance coverage obtained by the Unit Owner. Any Unit Owner who obtains individual insurance policies covering any portion of the Property, other than personal property belonging to such Owner, shall be required to file a copy of such individual policy or policies with the Council within thirty (30) days after the purchase of such insurance.

D. INSURANCE TRUSTEE.

(1) The Council shall have the right to designate any bank, trust company, savings and loan association, building loan association, insurance company, or institutional lender as the insurance Trustee, and all parties beneficially interested in such coverage shall be bound thereby. The insurance Trustee at the time of the deposit of such policies and endorsements shall acknowledge that the policies and any proceeds thereof will be held in accordance with the terms of this Code of Regulations.

(2) The insurance Trustee shall not be liable for payment of premiums, the renewal of policies, the sufficiency of coverage, the form or contents of policies, the correctness of any amounts received by the Trustee on account of the proceeds of any insurance policies, nor for the failure to collect any insurance proceeds. The sole duty of the insurance Trustee shall be to receive such proceeds as are paid to it and to hold the same in trust for the purposes elsewhere stated in this Code of Regulations, for the benefit of the Unit Owners and their respective mortgagees.

E. COUNCIL AS AGENT. The Council is hereby irrevocably appointed the agent for each Unit Owner and for each mortgagee of a Unit and for each owner of any other interest in the Property to adjust all claims arising under insurance policies purchased by the Council and to execute and deliver releases upon the payment of claims.

F. PREMIUMS. Premiums paid upon all insurance policies purchased by the Council shall be deemed to be a Common Expense.

G. RECONSTRUCTION FUNDS.

(1) RECONSTRUCTION FUND. The net proceeds of insurance collected on account of a casualty and the funds collected by the Council from assessments against Unit Owners on account of such casualty, if any, shall constitute a reconstruction fund which shall be disbursed in payment of the cost of reconstruction and repair in the manner set forth in this Section. If the net proceeds of insurance collected on account of a casualty is Fifty Thousand Dollars (\$50,000.00) or more, then the funds collected by the Council from assessments against the Unit Owners, if any, shall be deposited by the Council with the insurance Trustee, and the entire reconstruction fund shall be disbursed by the insurance Trustee; otherwise, the reconstruction fund shall be held and disbursed by the Council.

(2) METHOD OF DISBURSEMENT. The reconstruction fund shall be paid by the Council or the insurance Trustee, as the case may be, in appropriate progress payments, to such contractors, suppliers and personnel engaged in performing the work or supplying materials or services for the repair and reconstruction of the Property as are designated by the Council.

(3) SURPLUS. It shall be presumed that the first monies disbursed in payment of the cost of reconstruction and repair shall be from insurance proceeds; and if there is a balance in the reconstruction fund after the payment of all of the costs of the reconstruction and repair for which the fund is established, such balance shall be distributed jointly to the Unit Owners and their mortgagees who are the beneficial owners of the fund; provided, however, that the part of a distribution to a beneficial owner which is not in excess of assessments paid by the Unit Owner into the reconstruction fund shall not be made payable to any mortgagee.

(4) COMMON ELEMENTS. When the damage is to both Common Elements and one (1) or more Units, the insurance proceeds shall be applied first to the cost of repairing the Common Elements and the balance to the cost of repairing the Unit(s) allocated as set forth above.

(5) CERTIFICATE. The insurance Trustee shall be entitled to rely upon a certificate executed by the Council President or Vice President, and the Secretary certifying (a) whether the damaged Property is required to be reconstructed and repaired; (b) the name of the payee and the amount to be paid with respect to disbursements from any reconstruction fund held by the Trustee; (c) whether surplus funds to be distributed are less than the assessments paid by the Unit Owners; and (d) all other matters concerning the holding and disbursing of any reconstruction fund held by the Trustee. Any such certificate shall be delivered to the insurance Trustee promptly upon request.

**ARTICLE 7: RESTRICTIONS ON SALES, LEASE
OR ALIENATION OF UNIT.**

A. RIGHT OF FIRST REFUSAL. The Council shall have a right of first refusal with respect to the transfer, lease or other conveyance of any unit or interest therein, except by Declarant, or by devise, operation of the laws of intestacy, sale or gift to a Unit Owner's spouse, children, grandchildren, parents, brothers or sisters, grant of a first mortgage to an institutional lender, Court decree, or judicial or Sheriff's sale. A Unit Owner desiring to transfer, lease or otherwise alienate a Unit must notify the Council in writing of the desired action. The Council shall meet within five (5) days to determine whether or not it wishes to exercise its rights under this section. If a majority of the Council favor acquiring the interest in the Unit, they shall call a meeting of the Unit Owners within ten (10) days. Exercise of such right shall be determined by vote of the Unit Owners. If ninety (90%) percent or more of the total Unit Owner vote is in favor of acquiring the Unit or interest, then the Council shall make the acquisition in its name and the cost thereof shall be assessed against all the Unit Owners, except the selling Unit Owner, as a Common Expense. Otherwise, the Council shall not make the acquisition and shall promptly notify the Unit Owner in writing that the Unit may be transferred. This restriction shall not apply to any Unit standing in the name of the Council for and during the period of time that it is held by the Council.

B. NO SEVERANCE OF OWNERSHIP. No Unit Owner shall execute any deed, lease, mortgage, or other instrument conveying or mortgaging the title to such Owner's Unit without including therein the undivided interest in the Common Elements appurtenant to such Unit. No part of any interest in the Common Elements appurtenant to any Unit may be sold, leased, transferred, gifted, devised, or otherwise disposed of, except as part of a sale, lease, transfer, gift, devise, or other disposition of the Unit to which such interest is appurtenant, or as part of a sale, lease, transfer, gift, devise or other disposition of the interests in the Common Elements of all Units.

C. PAYMENT OF ASSESSMENTS. No Unit Owner shall be permitted to convey, mortgage, hypothecate, sell, lease, gift, or devise such Owner's Unit unless and until such Unit Owner (or such Owner's personal representative) shall have paid in full to the Council all unpaid Common Expenses theretofore assessed by the Council against such Owner's Unit and payable prior to the date of conveyance.

ARTICLE 8: MORTGAGES

A. NOTICE TO COUNCIL. A Unit Owner who mortgages his Unit shall notify the Council of the name and address of his Mortgagee and shall file a conformed copy of the Note and Mortgage with the Council.

B. NOTICE OF DEFAULT, CASUALTY OR CONDEMNATION. The Council when giving notice to any Unit Owner of a default in paying an assessment for Common Expenses or any other default, shall simultaneously send a copy of such notice to the Mortgagee of such Unit. Each Mortgagee shall also be promptly notified of any casualty when required herein, of all actions taken hereunder and of any taking in condemnation or by eminent domain and actions of the Unit Owners Association with respect thereto.

C. NOTICE OF AMENDMENT OF DECLARATION OR REGULATIONS. A change or modification of any provision of the Condominium Documents which touches or concerns the following matters shall be deemed a material amendment: voting rights, assessments, assessment liens, or subordination of assessment liens; reserves for maintenance, repair and replacement of common areas; responsibility for maintenance and repairs; reallocation of interests in the general or limited common areas, or rights to their use; boundaries of any Unit; convertibility of Units into common areas or vice versa; expansion or contraction of the project, or the addition, annexation or withdrawal of property to or from the project; insurance or fidelity bonds; leasing of Units; imposition of any restrictions on a Unit Owner's right to sell or transfer his or her Unit; a decision by the Owner's Association to establish self-management when professional management had been required previously by an eligible mortgage holder; restoration or repair of the project (after a hazard damage or partial condemnation) in a manner other than that specified in the documents; any action to terminate the legal status of the Project after substantial destruction or condemnation occurs; or any provisions that expressly benefit mortgage holders, insurers or guarantors.

D. NOTICE OF CHANGE IN MANAGING AGENT. The Council shall give notice to all Mortgagees at least thirty (30) days prior to changing the Managing Agent.

E. MORTGAGEE'S APPROVALS. Unless at least fifty-one percent (51%) of the Mortgagees (based upon votes of Unit estates that are subject to mortgages held by eligible holders) and at least sixty-seven percent (67%) of the Unit Owners (other than the Declarant), have given their prior written approval, the Unit Owner's Association shall not: (a) change any Unit's Percentage Interest in Common Expenses and Common Profits or in the Common Elements, except as provided in Section 2219(B) of the Unit Property Act; (b) partition, subdivide, abandon, encumber, sell or transfer the Common Elements of the Condominium (except for the granting of utility easements, etc., pursuant to Section 2215 of the Unit Property Act); (c) by act or omission withdraw the submission of the Property to the Unit Property Act, except as provided by Section 2229 of the Unit Property Act; (d) modify the method of determining and collecting assessments or allocating distributions of casualty insurance proceeds or condemnation awards; or (e) use hazard insurance proceeds for losses to the Condominium for any purpose other than repair, replacement or restoration except as provided herein or (f) effect any other amendment deemed material in accordance with the provisions herein.

F. OTHER RIGHTS OF MORTGAGEES. All Mortgagees or their representatives shall have the right to attend and to speak at meetings of the Unit Owners' Association. All such Mortgagees shall have the right to examine the books and records of the Condominium, and to require the submission of annual financial reports and other budgetary information. Mortgagees shall have the right to receive audited financial information; provided, however, that the cost and expense of any audit shall be borne exclusively by the requesting Mortgagee. Current copies of all Condominium Documents shall be available for inspection by Unit Owners and by Mortgagees or Guarantors during normal business hours at the Office of Declarant.

G. NOTICE. Mortgagees or Guarantors of the mortgages on any unit shall receive, as provided for below, timely written notice of the following:

(1) Any condemnation or casualty loss that affects either a material portion of the project or the Unit securing its mortgage;

(2) Any sixty (60) day delinquency in the payment of assessments or charges owed by the Owner of any Unit on which it holds the mortgage;

(3) Any lapse, cancellation or material modification of any insurance policy or fidelity bond maintained by the Owners Association;

(4) Any proposed action that requires consent of a specified percentage of eligible mortgage holders.

A Mortgagee shall only be entitled to written notice of the foregoing if it has requested same in writing and gives the Owners Association its name and address and the unit number address of the Unit to which its mortgage attaches.

ARTICLE 9: COMPLIANCE AND DEFAULT.

A. RELIEF. Each Unit Owner shall be governed by, and shall comply with, all of the terms of the Declaration, this Code of Regulations, and the Rules and Regulations, and any amendments of the same. A default thereunder by a Unit Owner shall entitle the Association of Owners, acting through the Council or through the managing agent, to the following relief:

(1) LEGAL PROCEEDINGS. Failure to comply with any of the terms of the Declaration, this Code of Regulations, and the Rules and Regulations shall be grounds for relief which may include, without limiting the same, an action to recover any sums due as money damages, injunctive relief, foreclosure of the lien for payment of all assessments, any other relief provided for in this Code of Regulations, or any combination thereof, and any other relief afforded by a court of competent jurisdiction, all of which relief may be sought by the Association of Owners, the Council, the managing agent, or, if appropriate, by an aggrieved Unit Owner.

(2) COSTS AND ATTORNEY'S FEES. In any proceeding arising out of any alleged default by a Unit Owner, the prevailing party shall be entitled to recover the costs of the proceeding, and such reasonable attorney's fees as may be determined by the court.

(3) NO WAIVER OF RIGHTS. The failure of the Association of Owners, the Council, or of an aggrieved Unit Owner to enforce any right, provision, covenant, or condition which may be granted by the Declaration, this Code of Regulations or the Rules and Regulations shall not constitute a waiver of the right of the Association of Owners, the Council or the aggrieved Unit Owner to enforce such right, provision, covenant, or condition in the future. All rights, remedies and privileges granted to the Association of Owners, the Council, or any aggrieved Unit Owner pursuant to any term, provision, covenant or condition of the Declaration, this Code of Regulations or the Rules and Regulations shall be deemed to be cumulative, and the exercise of any one or more thereof shall not be deemed to constitute an election of remedies, nor shall such exercise preclude the party exercising the same from exercising such other rights, remedies and privileges as may be granted to such party by the Declaration, this Code of Regulations or the Rules and Regulations, or at law or in equity.

(4) INTEREST. In the event of a default by any Unit Owner in paying any assessment for Common Expenses or other sum which continues unpaid for a period in excess of thirty (30) days, such Unit Owner shall be obligated to pay interest on amounts due from the due date thereof at the legal rate then in effect, unless such interest is waived by the Council.

(5) ABATEMENT AND ENJOYMENT OF VIOLATIONS BY UNIT OWNERS. The violation of any rule or regulation adopted by the Council, or the breach of any regulation contained herein, or the breach of any provision of the Declaration shall give the Council the right, in addition to any other rights pursuant to law or set forth in this Code of Regulations: (a) to enter the Unit in which, or as to which, such violation or breach exists and summarily to abate and remove, at the expense of the defaulting Unit Owner, any structure, thing or condition that may exist therein contrary to the intent and meaning of the provisions hereof, and the Council shall not thereby be deemed guilty in any manner of trespass; or (b) to enjoin, abate or remedy by appropriate legal proceedings, either at law or in equity, the continuance of any such breach.

B. LIEN FOR CONTRIBUTIONS.

(1) The total annual contribution of each Unit Owner for the Common Expenses pursuant to Article 5, Section A of this Code of Regulations is hereby declared to be a lien levied against the Unit of such Unit Owner, which lien shall be effective as of the first day of each fiscal year of the Condominium. The Council, or the managing agent, may file or record such other or further notice of lien, or such other further document as may be required by the then laws of the State of Delaware to confirm the establishment of such lien.

(2) In any case where an assessment against a Unit Owner is payable in installments, upon a default by such Unit Owner in the payment of any single installment, which default continues for thirty (30) days after written notice thereof has been sent to the Unit Owner, the maturity of the installments of such assessments then remaining unpaid may be accelerated, at the option of the Council, and the then balance owing may be declared due and payable in full by the service of notice to such effect upon the defaulting Owner by the Council or the managing agent.

(3) The lien for unpaid assessments of Common Expenses may be foreclosed in the manner provided by the laws of the State of Delaware by suit brought in the name of the Council or the managing agent, acting on behalf of the Association of Owners. The plaintiff in such proceeding shall have the right to the appointment of a receiver, if such right is available under the then laws of the State of Delaware.

(4) Suit to recover a money judgment for unpaid assessments of Common Elements shall be maintainable without foreclosing or waiving the lien securing the same, and foreclosure shall be maintainable notwithstanding the pendency of any suit to recover a money judgment.

(5) The lien for unpaid assessments of Common Expenses shall be subordinate to the lien of any first mortgagee.

ARTICLE 10: MISCELLANEOUS.

A. NOTICES. All notices, demands, bills, statements or other communications under this Code of Regulations shall be in writing and shall be deemed to have been duly given if delivered personally or if sent by registered or certified mail, return receipt requested, first class postage prepaid: (1) if to a Unit Owner, at the address which the Owner shall designate in writing and filed with the Secretary or, if no such address is designated, at the address of the Unit of such Unit Owner, or (2) if to the Association of Owners, the Council or the managing agent, at the principal office of the managing agent or at such other address as shall be designated by notice in writing to the Unit Owners pursuant to this Section.

B. CAPTIONS. The captions herein are inserted only as a matter of convenience and for reference, and in no way define, limit or describe the scope of this Code of Regulations, or the intent of any provision thereof.

C. GENDER. The use of the masculine gender in this Code of Regulations shall be deemed to include the feminine or neuter genders, whenever the context so requires. The use of the singular shall include the plural, and the plural shall include the singular whenever the context so requires.

D. EFFECTIVE DATE. This Code becomes effective when it and the Declaration and the Declaration Plan have been duly entered or recorded in the Office of the Recorder of Deeds in and for New Castle County, Delaware.

E. INTERPRETATION. The provisions of this Code shall be liberally construed in order to effectuate a uniform plan for development and operation of a condominium project as expressed in the Declaration.

This Code of Regulations shall, to all reasonable extent be deemed to be consistent with and supplementary to the provisions of the Unit Property Act. Any conflict between the Declaration and this Code of Regulations shall, if not otherwise resolvable, be resolved in favor of the Declaration. The unconstitutionality, illegality, invalidity or nonconformance with the Unit Property Act of any provisions of this Code of Regulations shall not affect the remaining portions hereof which shall thereupon be deemed of continuing validity and in full force and effect. Any provisions of this Code of Regulations which may not be directly or indirectly provided for or permitted by the Unit Property Act, but which is not specifically prohibited by the Unit Property Act, or by any other applicable statute or rule of law, shall, if not enforceable under the Unit Property Act, be deemed to be a contractual undertaking and obligation, voluntarily assumed, by each and every Unit Owner, as the entirety of Unit Owners may be constituted from time to time, and such contractual undertaking and obligation shall be in consideration of that assumption by each and every other Unit Owner, and same may be enforced in the same manner as any other contractual undertaking and obligation. No provision in this Code of Regulations shall be deemed invalid, waived, abrogated or no longer enforceable by reason of the passage of time or of any failure to enforce the same, irrespective of the length of time passed or the number of failures of enforcement of one or more such provisions.

F. APPROVAL OF MORTGAGEES. This Code of Regulations contain provisions concerning various rights, priorities, remedies and interests of Mortgagees. Such provisions in this Code of Regulations are to be construed as covenants for the protection of such Mortgagees on which they may rely in making loans secured by Mortgages. Accordingly, no amendment or modification of this Code of Regulations impairing or affecting such rights, priorities, remedies or interests of a Mortgagee shall be adopted without the prior written consent of such Mortgagee.

ESTABLISHED AND ADOPTED by the undersigned, being the first Members of the Council of TRINITY SQUARE NORTH CONDOMINIUMS, the day and year first above written.

Deborah J. Barnes
Witness
Deborah J. Barnes
Witness
Deborah J. Barnes
Witness

[Signature] (SEAL)
FRANK A. ROBINO, JR.
[Signature] (SEAL)
PAUL A. ROBINO
[Signature] (SEAL)
A. NORMAN PAUL

STATE OF DELAWARE)
) SS.
NEW CASTLE COUNTY)

BE IT REMEMBERED that on this 5th day of February, A.D., 1988, personally appeared before me, the Subscriber, a Notary Public for the State and County aforesaid, FRANK A. ROBINO, JR., PAUL A. ROBINO and A. NORMAN PAUL, known to me personally to be such, and they acknowledged this Code of Regulations to be their Act and Deed.

GIVEN under my Hand and Seal of Office, the day and year aforesaid.

Deborah J. Barnes
Notary Public